

# Parity Education Services Ltd.

Shaping Futures with Equal Opportunities

# Safeguarding Policy



### **Contents**

Key contacts

Policy implementation and monitoring

	Page
1. Aims	3
2. Purpose	4
3. Role of Designated Safeguarding Lead	5
4. Legislation and statutory guidance	5
5. Definitions	6
6. Forms of Abuse	7
7. Mental Health Concerns	8
8. Our Procedures	8
9. Procedure on how to report safeguarding concerns	9
10. Duty of care towards employees and volunteer tutors	12
11. Safer Recruitment	12
12. Record Keeping	15
13. Code of Conduct	15
14. Online and virtual tutoring (at home and in school)	17
15. Online and virtual tutor code of conduct	18
16. Online pupil's code of conduct	19
17. Parent/Guardian and/or Responsible Adult code of conduct	20
18. Legal Background	21
19. Power and Positions of Trust	22
20. Links with other policies	22

## **Key contacts**

ROLE/ORGANISATION	NAME	CONTACT DETAILS
Designated safeguarding lead(DSL)	Patrick Iberi – Proprietor	p.iberi@parityeducation@co.uk
Deputy DSL	Andrew Williams – Lead Tutor	a.williams@parityeducation.co.uk
HR & Safeguarding Officer	Debbie Allen	d.allen@parityeducation.co.uk
Local authority designated officer (LADO)	London Borough of Harrow Children & Family Services Children's Access Team	020 8901 2690
Channel helpline		020 7340 7264

#### Policy implementation and monitoring

Date policy was last reviewed	September 2023
Date policy to be next reviewed	September 2024 or as appropriate
People involved in writing the policy	<ul> <li>Patrick Iberi (Proprietor)</li> <li>Andrew Williams (Lead Tutor)</li> </ul>
Monitoring and Evaluation	<ul><li>Proprietor</li><li>Lead Tutor</li></ul>
Display and Availability	<ul> <li>Google Drive</li> <li>PECS Outreach Portal</li> <li>Printed copies kept in staff office</li> <li>Policy available on the website</li> </ul>
Lead Responsibility and designated safeguarding lead	Lead Responsibility – Patrick Iberi (Proprietor and DSL)

#### 1. Aims

All children have an absolute right to a childhood free from abuse, neglect or exploitation. The welfare and protection of the young people we work with is central to the way that Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd work. All adults involved in Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's activities and who come into contact with children have a duty of care to safeguard and promote their welfare.

This policy and the procedures contained within it exist not to discourage adults from being involved in Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's work but to ensure, as far as possible, that people who may abuse children do not get the opportunity to do so.

- There is a duty placed upon us to ensure that all adults who work with or on behalf of our young people are competent, confident and safe to do so.
- Adults working or volunteering for Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd are responsible for their own actions
  and behaviour and should avoid any conduct that would lead a reasonable person to question their motivation or
  intention.
- Everyone involved in Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd activities must follow Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's Code of Conduct.
- They must also be familiar with the steps to be taken in the event of becoming aware of, suspecting or receiving allegations of abuse.

Ultimately, all systems, processes and policies should operate with the best interests of the child at their heart.

#### 2. Purpose

Child Protection is a part of safeguarding and promoting welfare. This refers to the activity that is undertaken to protect specific children who are suffering, or are likely to suffer, significant harm.

Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd fully recognises its responsibilities and is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people. The policy also incorporates due diligence on all alternative provisions offered at Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd. This policy sets out how Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd will meet its statutory duty under section 175 of the Education Act 2002 and the statutory guidance provided in September 2023 'Keeping children safe in education' to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and help them to achieve good outcomes and ensure a child-centred coordinated approach to safeguarding. Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd will achieve this by providing a safe learning environment and ensuring staff have the skills and knowledge to take action where children are in need of help or protection.

Our Safeguarding Procedure gives clarity to the measures needed to ensure that all employees and students can work within and enjoy being part of a safe and caring environment. Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd is committed to helping children achieve good outcomes by providing a safe learning environment that promotes their welfare and helps them to develop socially and emotionally so that they can make the most of their life chances. Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd also recognises that safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is everyone's responsibility. Everyone who comes into contact with children and their families has a role to play. In order to fulfil this responsibility effectively, all professionals should make sure that they consider at all times what is in the best interests of the child. Everyone who comes into contact with them has a role to play in identifying concerns, sharing information and taking prompt action. In line with the Education Act 2002; Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd will ensure that arrangements are in place to safeguard and promote the welfare of Learners by:

- providing a safe, healthy learning environment that allows them to develop to their full potential
- safeguarding their welfare
- protecting children from maltreatment
- providing students with opportunities to discuss issues and report problems affecting their safety and welfare
- ensuring safer recruitment practices
- ensuring robust procedures for recognition and referral where there are welfare or child protection concerns
- monitoring and supporting students who are subject to child protection plans and contributing to the implementation of their plan
- raising awareness amongst staff of child protection issues and ensuring staff are equipped to deal with concerns and recognise that everyone has a role to play in identifying concerns and sharing information and taking prompt action.
- teaching students to keep themselves safe and ensuring they know who to approach for help

- promoting partnership working with parents and professionals
- Have robust processes (including filtering and monitoring systems) in place to ensure the online safety of pupils, staff, volunteers and governors
- Protect and educate the whole Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd community in its safe and responsible use of technology, including mobile and smart technology (which we refer to as 'mobile phones')
- Set clear guidelines for the use of mobile phones for the whole Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd community
- Establish clear mechanisms to identify, intervene in and escalate any incidents or concerns, where appropriate

#### 3. Role of Designated Safeguarding Officer (DSL)

Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd has a DSL to:

- Offer support and training to all employees and volunteer tutors involved in Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's work.
- Ensure that all Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd employees and volunteer tutors are sufficiently vetted.
- Act as the main point of contact in the event of any allegation or disclosure.
- Act as the main point of contact between Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd and partner schools.
- Oversee the filtering and monitoring of the reporting systems in place.

If there is an allegation, if signs and indicators of abuse are identified or if at any point an adult involved with Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's work fails to comply with any element of the Code of Conduct this information must be passed immediately to Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's DSL. It is the DSL's responsibility to collect all relevant information and make decisions on how to proceed (this will include contacting the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) at the relevant partner school/s). All employees and volunteer tutors should report all signs, reports and concerns. In the event of the DSO being unavailable please email one of the contacts listed above, or call the above telephone number.

#### 4. Legislation and statutory guidance

This policy is based on the Department for Education's (DfE's) statutory guidance <u>Keeping Children Safe in Education (2023)</u> and <u>Working Together to Safeguard Children (2018)</u>, and the <u>Governance Handbook</u>. We comply with this guidance and the arrangements agreed and published by our safeguarding partners including the local authority.

This policy is also based on the following legislation:

- Part 3 of the schedule to the <u>Alternative Education Provision Regulations 2014</u>, which places duty on academies and independent alternative education provision to safeguard and promote the welfare of pupils.
- The Children Act 1989 (and 2004 amendment), which provides a framework for the care and protection of children
- Section 5B (11) of the Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003, as inserted by section 74 of the <u>Serious Crime Act</u> 2015, which places a statutory duty on teachers to report to the police where they discover that female genital mutilation (FGM) appears to have been carried out on a girl under 18

- Statutory guidance on FGM, which sets out responsibilities with regards to safeguarding and supporting
  girls affected by FGM
- The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974, which outlines when people with criminal convictions can work with children
- Schedule 4 of the <u>Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006</u>, which defines what 'regulated activity' is in relation to children
- Statutory guidance on the Prevent duty, which explains Alternative Education Provision's duties under the Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 with respect to protecting people from the risk of radicalisation and extremism
- The Human Rights Act 1998, which explains that being subjected to harassment, violence and/or abuse, including that of a sexual nature, may breach any or all of the rights which apply to individuals under the European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR)
- The Equality Act 2010, which makes it unlawful to discriminate against people regarding particular protected characteristics (including disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender reassignment and race). This means our provision should carefully consider how they are supporting their pupils with regard to these characteristics. The Act allows our Alternative Education Provision to take positive action to deal with particular disadvantages affecting pupils (where we can show it's proportionate). This includes making reasonable adjustments for disabled pupils. For example, it could include taking positive action to support girls where there's evidence that they're being disproportionately subjected to sexual violence or harassment.
- The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED), which explains that we must have due regard to eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation. The PSED helps us to focus on key issues of concern and how to improve pupil outcomes. Some pupils may be more at risk of harm from issues such as sexual violence; homophobic, biphobic or transphobic bullying; or racial discrimination.

#### 5. Definitions

Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children means:

- · Protecting children from maltreatment
- · Preventing impairment of children's mental and physical health or development
- Ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and effective care
- Taking action to enable all children to have the best outcomes

**Child protection** is part of this definition and refers to activities undertaken to prevent children suffering, or being likely to suffer, significant harm.

**Abuse** is a form of maltreatment of a child, and may involve inflicting harm or failing to act to prevent harm. Section six explains the different types of abuse.

**Neglect** is a form of abuse and is the persistent failure to meet a child's basic physical and/or psychological needs, likely to result in the serious impairment of the child's health or development. Appendix 1 defines neglect in more detail.

**Sharing of nudes and semi-nudes** (also known as sexting or youth-produced sexual imagery) is where children share nude or semi-nude images, videos or live streams.

Children includes everyone under the age of 18.

The following three **safeguarding partners** are identified in Keeping Children Safe in Education (and defined in the Children Act 2004, as amended by chapter 2 of the Children and Social Work Act 2017). They will make arrangements to work together to safeguard and promote the welfare of local children, including identifying and responding to their needs:

- . The local authority (LA)
- · Integrated care boards (previously known as clinical commissioning groups) for an area within the LA
- The chief officer of police for a police area in the LA area

**Victim** is a widely understood and recognised term, but we understand that not everyone who has been subjected to abuse considers themselves a victim, or would want to be described that way. When managingan incident, we will be prepared to use any term that the child involved feels most comfortable with.

**Alleged perpetrator(s)** and **perpetrator(s)** are widely used and recognised terms. However, we will think carefully about what terminology we use (especially in front of children) as, in some cases, abusive behaviour can be harmful to the perpetrator too. We will decide what's appropriate and which terms to use on a case-bycase basis.

#### 6. Forms of abuse

Abuse: A form of maltreatment of a child. Somebody may abuse or neglect a child by inflicting harm or by failing to act to prevent harm. Children may be abused by other children or adults, in a family or in an institutional or community setting by those known to them or, more rarely, by others.

It is important to be aware that many of the forms of abuse can take place either online or in person.

The main forms of abuse are:

- Physical abuse: A form of abuse that may involve hitting, shaking, throwing, poisoning, burning or scalding, drowning, suffocating
  or otherwise causing physical harm to a child.
- Emotional abuse: The persistent emotional maltreatment of a child such as to cause severe and adverse effects on the child's emotional development. It may involve conveying to a child that they are worthless or unloved, inadequate, or valued only insofar as they meet the needs of another person. It may involve bullying (and cyberbullying). Some level of emotional abuse is involved in all types of maltreatment of a child, although it may occur alone.
- Sexual abuse: The involvement of dependent, developmentally immature children and adolescents in sexual activities they do not truly comprehend, to which they are unable to give informed consent. Sexual abuse can take place online, and technology can be used to facilitate offline abuse. The sexual abuse of children by other children is a specific safeguarding issue (also known as child-on-child abuse) in education.
- Neglect: The persistent or severe neglect of a child that results in serious impairment of the child's health or development (both physical and mental).
- Child Sexual Exploitation and Criminal Exploitation are forms of child abuse and can include:
- Sexual violence and sexual harassment: This can occur between two or more children of any age and sex, from primary through to secondary stage and into college. It can also include a group of children sexually assaulting or sexually harassing a single child or group of children.
- Female Genital Mutilation: This comprises of all procedures involving partial or total removal of the external female genitalia or other injury to the female genital organs. It is illegal in the UK and a form of child abuse with long-lasting harmful consequences.
- Grooming: Children and young people can be groomed online, in person or both by a stranger or someone they know. This could be a family member, a friend or someone who has targeted them, like a teacher, faith group leader or sports coach.
- Self-abuse: Any means by which a child or young person seeks to harm themselves. This can take many physical forms, including cutting, bruising, scratching, hair-pulling, poisoning, overdosing and eating disorders.

- Child on child abuse: Abuse of a child by another child. Examples of this include bullying (including cyberbullying, prejudice-based and discriminatory bullying) physical abuse, sexual violence or harassment, upskirting (taking a picture under another person's clothing without consent), sexting and initiation or hazing violence and rituals.
- Domestic abuse: This can encompass a wide range of behaviours and may be a single incident or a pattern of incidents.

  That abuse can be, but is not limited to, psychological, physical, sexual, financial or emotional.

#### 7. Mental health concerns

All employees should also be aware that mental health problems can, in some cases, be an indicator that a child has suffered or is at risk of suffering abuse, neglect or exploitation. If employees have a mental health concern about a child that is also a safeguarding concern, immediate action should be taken, by following this child protection policy and speaking to the designated safeguarding lead or a deputy.

Serious violence: These may lead to increased absence from school or college, a change in friendships or relationships with older individuals or groups, a significant decline in performance, signs of self-harm or a significant change in wellbeing, or signs of assault or unexplained injuries.

Radicalisation: This can present as extremism which includes active opposition to fundamental values such as democracy, rule of law, individual liberty and mutual respect and tolerance of different faiths and beliefs. Radicalisation can lead to involvement in terrorism. An individual's susceptibility to radicalisation may be linked to their vulnerability. Though it is important to note, not all people susceptible to radicalisation will be vulnerable.

#### 8. Our Procedures

In all cases related to child protection and safeguarding, the main procedure for Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd staff is to treat the allegation seriously, in strict confidence and immediately contact the Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd DSL, and/or allocated school child protection and safeguarding lead(s). In the event that Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's DSLs are contacted the following protocol will be followed:

- 1. The information will immediately be passed on to the provision's DSLs.
  - 2. The school shall follow the school's procedure for contacting the local Police Child Protection Unit or the Social Services Department of the relevant Local Authority (the Authorities). If the case relates to radicalisation, a referral should also be made to the police. Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd shall support the school with any action that the school deems appropriate and shall undertake reasonable action to provide the school with any assistance or documents.
  - 3. Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd shall not, under any circumstances, undertake any independent investigation or questioning (as this may jeopardise any enquiry) unless or until Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd is given authorisation by the school or the authorities.

- Following authorisation, Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd may independently follow up on the allegation.
- 4. All allegations, disclosures or suspicions shall be referred to the school no matter how insignificant they seem to be or when they occur. Any information about suspicious behaviour or circumstances will be passed to the local Police Child Protection Unit, the local Social Services or the local police team within 24 hours or as soon as shall be reasonably practicable.

#### 9. Procedure on how to report safeguarding concerns

- When a safeguarding concern or disclosure occurs, employees and volunteer tutors will not promise confidentiality. They will listen carefully to the child and try to remember the key words or phrases used. They will aim to provide an environment that is supportive and respectful. They will not ask leading questions or start to investigate the issue. Pupils with special educational needs may have communication barriers and difficulties in reporting these challenges.
- Once a safeguarding concern has occurred, employees and volunteer tutors will contact the DSL
  as soon as practicably possible. If they can't contact the DSL they will contact the deputy DSL or
  any the contacts listed above.
- All safeguarding concern raised by employees or volunteer tutors shall be listened to by the DSL in an appropriate environment which means only those who need to hear the details of the concern are able to. If a volunteer tutor raises a safeguarding concern in a more public environment (e.g. with other pupils in the room or in a tutor-only debrief session) the DSL will ensure a more appropriate environment is found to hear the safeguarding concern, as soon as practicably possible.
- The DSL will read and/or listen to the safeguarding concern, depending on the format it has been provided in.
- All pupil absences are recorded in Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's central recording system (Tutorcruncher) and the DSL will inform the school of any absences through weekly email updates.
- The safeguarding report form will be completed, either by the employee or the volunteer tutor, as appropriate.
- The safeguarding concern/incident will be emailed to the link teacher, DSL for the school and safeguarding@parityeducation.co.uk as soon as practicably possible.
- A more detailed internal summary of all Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd safeguarding procedures is available upon request.

In the event that a young person discloses abuse to an employee of Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd or a volunteer tutor, the staff member shall:

- Allow the young person to speak without interruption, encouraging them to tell you only what they
  feel comfortable telling you, and be accepting and be non-judgemental about what is said. Do not
  ask investigative or leading questions of any kind.
- Advise the young person that you will offer support, but that you MUST pass on what they tell you and are not able to keep anything they tell you confidential.
- If they refuse to tell you anything unless you promise to keep it a secret, inform them that you want to help and that there is one person you have to tell. If they then refuse to tell you anymore, please respect their decision and report this incident.
- Ensure that the young person is not immediately at risk of any further abuse.
- Immediately after a disclosure, contact the DSL (for both employees and volunteer tutors) who work for Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd.
- Report the facts as you know or understand them, including the pupil's name and the account
  given to you by the young person using the words that they used as well as including any other
  information you feel is relevant.
- Provide this detailed information to the DSL (for both employees and volunteer tutors) who work for Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd as soon as you are able.
- Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd shall retain a copy of all such notifications in accordance with GDPR guidelines.
- Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd has a legal duty to make a referral to the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) where they consider an individual has engaged in conduct that harmed (or is likely to harm) a child; or if a person otherwise poses a risk of harm to a child.
  - 1. If the child does not give consent to share information, volunteer tutors and employees may still lawfully share it, if it's in the best interest of the child.

In the event that an employee or volunteer tutor suspects abuse, but it has not been disclosed by the young person, they shall:

- Not discuss your suspicions with the young person in question or conduct any form of investigative work.
- In relation to pupils with special educational needs, it should not be assumed that indicators of
  possible abuse such as mood and/or injury is related to the pupil's condition and should be
  reported as safeguarding concerns.
- Report the facts as you know or understand them, including the pupil's name and the account
  given to you by the young person using the words that they used as well as including any other
  information you feel is relevant.
- Provide this detailed information to the Lead Tutor (for volunteer tutors)/the DSL (for employees)
   at Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd as soon as you are able.
- Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd shall retain a copy of all such notifications in accordance with GDPR guidelines.
   If you receive an allegation about any adult, including Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd staff or about a volunteer tutor (including the person hearing the allegation), employees of Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd and volunteer tutors shall:
- Immediately after receiving an allegation or disclosure, contact the DSL (for both employees and volunteer tutors) who work for Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd.
- Report the facts as you know or understand them, including the names of relevant adults and/or
  young people and the account given to you using the words that they used as well as including any
  other information you feel is relevant.
- Provide this detailed information to the DSL (for both employees and volunteer tutors) who work for Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd.
- Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd shall retain a copy of all such notifications in accordance with GDPR guidelines.
- Any allegations against Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd employees will be reported to the DSL and to the Trustee in charge of Safeguarding for investigation. If the allegation is against the DSL then the Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd Employees Whistleblowing Policy should be followed.

When dealing with the personal data of young people (including names, academic year group and school), employees of Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd and volunteer tutors shall:

- Handle all information with sensitivity and confidentiality and in accordance with GDPR guidelines.
- The information should be kept securely and not be made available to others without the authority
  of Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd.

#### 10. Duty of care towards our employees and volunteer tutors

Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd must:

- Manage and minimise the stress caused by any allegation made about an individual.
- Inform the individual as soon as possible if an allegation has been made against them, explaining
  the likely course of action, guided by the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO), and the police
  where necessary.
- Advise the individual to contact their trade union representative, or a colleague for support.
- Keep the individual informed about the progress of the case.
- Provide access to counselling or medical advice where appropriate for employees. In the case of volunteer tutors, point them towards sources of help.
- Not prevent social contact with work colleagues and friends when an employee is suspended, unless there is evidence to suggest this may prejudice the gathering of evidence.

#### 11. Safer Recruitment and Training

Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd maintains a high standard in recruiting employees and volunteer tutors. When recruiting paid employees, each interview panel contains at least one member who is trained in Safer Recruitment practices. All Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd employees working closely with pupils and volunteer tutors will be subject to an enhanced DBS check before they can begin working within our partner schools. All employees without direct contact have a basic DBS check. All individuals are checked against the Barred List for working with children.

Every volunteer tutor must be able to fulfill one of the following:

 Have an existing enhanced DBS check which is not more than two years old verified by an Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd employee, with the disclosure number and date of issue recorded, along with a photographic ID. This DBS must check against the children's Barred List and must have 'child workforce' listed.

If a volunteer tutor is on the DBS update service, before using this service, Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd must:

- Obtain consent from the individual to carry out an online check to view and confirm the DBS certificate matches the individual's identity.
- Examine the original certificate to ensure that it is valid for employment with the children's workforce.
- Arrange with Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd to have a new enhanced DBS check processed by Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd.

Additionally, all volunteer tutors are vetted in line with the processes and procedures set out in Keeping Children Safe in Education 2023. This includes the appropriate checks for safer recruitment.

- All our volunteer tutors have had their ID checked, including either a passport or photo driving license with proof of address.
- All our volunteer tutors have had their date of birth checked.
- All our volunteers have completed a detailed application form that outlines their education history, grades, current employer (if applicable), their current address, a range of personal identifiers and an option to declare:
  - If they have lived abroad for more than six months in the last five years,
  - If they would like to declare any convictions,
  - If they have mental and physical fitness to carry out their volunteer responsibilities.
- If our recruitment team is satisfied that they pass our high qualification and motivation standards, they are invited to attend our initial tutor training, including a thorough section about safeguarding.
   If we are unsure about any element of their application, they are invited to a video interview.
- A risk assessment is conducted by our safeguarding team for volunteer tutors with a conviction on their Enhanced DBS certificate.
- After attending training, all volunteer tutors submit the appropriate ID for us to run an Enhanced DBS check.
- All our volunteers are checked against the 'Prohibited from Teaching' list.

- Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd must receive two satisfactory references for all tutors.
- status of an existing enhanced DBS check.
- All volunteer tutors that have lived or worked overseas for six months or more in the past five years have provided either an overseas criminal record check or a letter of good conduct, or a risk assessment has been done.
- Our volunteer tutors are supervised at all times.

Additionally, every employee must be able to fulfill the following:

- Arrange with Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd to have a new DBS check suitable for their role processed by Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd.
- Complete checks regarding their right to work in the UK.
- Online searches may be done as part of due diligence checks.
- Provide two references deemed to be satisfactory.

For employees that have lived or worked overseas for six months or more in the past five years, provide either an overseas criminal record check or a letter of good conduct. In the event that the employee cannot provide any of these, Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd will complete a risk assessment.

Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd employees and volunteers receive training on the contents of this policy as part of their induction. This policy is made available to all adults involved in Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's activities. All volunteer tutors confirm they have received safeguarding training when they sign up to work with Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd and understand their responsibilities in relation to safeguarding.

Employees receive regular refresher safeguarding training which includes an understanding of the expectations, applicable roles and responsibilities in relation to filtering and monitoring. As part of our staff induction and then on a yearly basis, employees undertake the NSPCC online 'Introduction to Safeguarding' training and receive specific training from Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's DSL or the HR Manager.

Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd is subject to the Prevent Duty and all new staff members are required to complete Prevent training within their induction period.

The DSL and any deputies should undergo training to provide them with the knowledge and skills required to carry out the role. The training should be updated every two years.

In addition, all employees receive regular safeguarding and child protection updates (for example, via email, e-bulletins, employee meetings) as required, and at least annually, to provide them with relevant skills and knowledge to safeguard children effectively.

Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd is committed to safer recruitment and the DSL, Deputy DSL, Safeguarding Officer and HR Manager have undertaken safer recruitment training. Our 'Recruitment of ex-offenders policy' is available on request.

Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd will work closely with each partner school to ensure we understand and comply with any specific safeguarding requirements that they may have. We will ask them to share any relevant information or policies that they would like our employees and volunteer tutors to be aware of. These could include but are not limited to volunteer code of conduct, employee code of conduct, tackling extremism and radicalisation, health and safety, complaints, whistleblowing, equality and diversity.

The child's wish: where there is a safeguarding concern, Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd encourages governing bodies, proprietors and school or college leaders to take the child's wishes, feelings and point of view into account when determining what action to take and what services to provide.

Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd adheres to <u>Keeping Children Safe in Education</u> (September 2023) and this document is key to our safeguarding approach for all employees and volunteer tutors.

#### 12. Record keeping

All Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd safeguarding processes, incidents and documentation will be kept securely with restricted access. These will be monitored and filtered on a yearly basis. For more details on all internal record keeping procedures please contact the DSL directly. A copy of the internal Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd Safeguarding Manual may be shared upon request.

#### 13. Code of conduct

All adults coming into contact with children and young people through Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's work must comply with this Child Protection and Safeguarding Children Policy and this code of conduct.

You must:

- Act in accordance with the partner school's policies and procedures regarding child protection, safeguarding and bullying.
- Treat all young people with respect.
- Avoid being alone with a young person or causing someone else to be alone with a young person because of your actions (e.g. by being late). If alone in a room with young people, keep the door open at all times.
- Remember that someone else might misinterpret your actions, no matter how well intentioned.
- Be aware that any physical contact with a young person can be misinterpreted and should always be avoided. Shaking hands in a public setting is considered acceptable.
- Be aware that social networking sites are in the public domain if not protected by privacy settings.
   Strongly consider strengthening any privacy settings so that young people would not be able to access your online profiles and be privy to any information you would not want in the public domain.
- Block any young people that approach you online and inform Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's DSL immediately.
- Recognise that special caution is required when discussing sensitive issues with young people.
- Challenge unacceptable behaviour and report all allegations or suspicions of abuse to the Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's DSL.
- Report bullying (including cyberbullying, prejudice-based and discriminatory bullying) to Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's DSL.
- Operate within Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's procedures in the event of any disclosure or concern.
- Raise any questions or concerns about child protection and safeguarding with Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's DSL, or if unsure of a school's procedure, information should be sought from school employees.
- You must not promise confidentiality to young people in any situation.
- Seek out or add young people on any social networking site.
- Respond to any online communication from a young person, for example on a social networking site.
- Share any personal contact details with young people, or seek out their personal contact details.

- Arrange to meet a young person outside of the allocated tutoring time, unless on the school premises and with the prior knowledge of an employee.
- Act in a manner that excludes any of the young people you are working with.
- Make suggestive or derogatory remarks in front of young people.
- Engage in bullying (including cyberbullying, prejudice-based and discriminatory based bullying).
- Have inappropriate physical contact or verbal contact with young people.
- Show favouritism to any individual.
- Be under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or be seen smoking including e-cigarettes or any other substance not permitted to under-18s.
- Take photographs of young people.
- According to the Equality Act, you must not unlawfully discriminate against pupils because of their sex, race, disability, religion or belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, or sexual orientation (protected characteristics). Please find our full Diversity and Inclusion tutor code of conduct here.
  - 2. Includes email address, telephone number or address.

#### 14. Online and virtual tutoring (at home and in school)

For all online tutoring completed in the name of Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd, Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd will provide:

- Resource templates for tutors to use. We allow tutors to create their own resources for up to 25% of the session but this must be approved by a Lead Tutor.
- Clear employee training in how to monitor child protection and safeguarding in online tutoring sessions.
- Clear tutor (volunteer) training on how to conduct themselves in a safe and appropriate manner throughout online tutoring sessions.

- The safe and limited-access storage of all data and recordings generated as a result of online sessions. GDPR applies as per Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's Data Protection policies.
- A DSL who is responsible for supporting and training all employees and volunteers involved in Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's work, ensuring that all Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd employees and volunteers are sufficiently vetted, acts as the main point of contact in the event of any allegation or disclosure, acts as the main point of contact between Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's and partner schools.

All online and virtual sessions take place on Google Classroom. Google Classroom settings are restricted to only allow videos from designated sites to be shared to ensure filtering and monitoring of content shared with pupils. Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd adheres to the filtering and monitoring procedures set by the schools based on their firewall rules and settings.

#### 15. Online and virtual tutor code of conduct

All those who volunteer to tutor through Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's online sessions are required to adhere to the following code of conduct:

- Online tutors will only conduct tutoring with their pupils at the designated tutoring times and dates advertised by Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd.
- Online tutors will conduct tutoring either in a workplace or location that does not expose personal information or access to inappropriate background content.
- Volunteer tutors who are temporarily based abroad for work or educational purposes may request to continue tutoring during their time abroad. Only Volunteer tutors who will be abroad for six weeks or less will be considered. Schools have the right to pause tutoring by tutors who are abroad if it is in conflict with their own school policies.
- Online tutors will be dressed appropriately in a manner that would be suitable for their attendance at a school in person.
- Online tutors must not be under the influence of alcohol or drugs or be seen smoking including ecigarettes or any other substance not permitted to under-18s in the virtual classroom.
- Online tutors will keep their video stream 'on' and visible for the duration of their sessions.
- Volunteer tutors will not record video, still images or audio of any tutoring sessions.
- Online tutors will not use the screenshare function.

- Online tutors will never disclose their phone, email or other communication details with their pupils nor request their pupils' details through the online platform.
- Online tutors will conduct their sessions without disruption (mobile phones should be set to silent and away from gaze) or supervision by any other persons not approved by Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd.
- Online tutors will not share any links to online content or websites that contain anything other than
  educational resources that directly link to the content of their sessions and Parity Education and
  Careers Services Ltd workbooks. If in doubt of the validity of any website or material please get in
  contact with the Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd team who need to approve all
  resources used in sessions.
- Online tutors will not take any screenshots of sessions.
- Online tutors consent to the recording and safe storage of online sessions for six weeks past the
  date of recording, unless recordings are deemed to be needed by the DSO. This is for monitoring and
  safeguarding purposes only.
- Online tutors consent to the monitoring of all online sessions by Parity Education and Careers
   Services Ltd employees either live during the tutorial or afterwards in a systematic random review of safeguarding procedures.
- Online tutors will report any concerns about safeguarding or child protection as well as follow all Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd safeguarding and child protection procedures outlined in the main text of the 'Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd Child Protection and Safeguarding Protection Policy dated October 2023'.
- Online tutors will follow any additional requirements as requested by individual school policies regarding digital working.

#### 16. Online pupil code of conduct

All schools who partner with Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd agree to the following code of conduct for their pupils involved in online sessions:

- Pupils will only receive online tutoring at the designated tutoring times and dates advertised by Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd, in agreement with their school.
- Pupils who receive online tutoring from their home shall do so with a parent or guardian present in the same room.

- Pupils will be dressed appropriately in either their uniform or appropriate attire for attendance at a school event.
- Pupils who receive online tutoring at school shall do so with a responsible adult present at listening distance.
- Pupils will conduct online tutoring either in a workplace or location that does not expose personal information.
- If broadband speed permits, pupils will keep their video stream 'on' for the duration of their sessions.
- Pupils will have any mobile phones on silent and out of gaze during sessions, or completely away as dictated by their school's policy.
- Pupils will not record video, still images or audio of any tutoring sessions.
- Pupils will never disclose their phone, email or other communication details with their tutor nor request those of their tutor through the online platform.
- Pupils will not share any links to online content or websites that contain anything other than
  educational resources that directly link to the content of their sessions and Parity Education and
  Careers Services Ltd workbooks.
- Pupils will not take any screenshots of sessions.
- Pupils consent to the recording and safe storage of online sessions for six weeks past the date of recording, unless recordings are deemed to be needed by the DSO.
- Pupils consent to the monitoring of all online sessions by Parity Education and Careers Services
   Ltd employees either live during the tutorial or afterwards in a systematic random review of safeguarding procedures.

## 17. Parent/guardian and/or Responsible Adult code of conduct (for home-based online tutoring)

- Parents/guardians or the named Responsible Adult of pupils in receipt of home-based tutoring will remain at home and within 'listening-distance' for the duration of the tutoring session.
- Parents/guardians or the named Responsible Adult will support their child with basic IT set up, with the support of the Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's team.
- Parents/guardians or the named Responsible Adult will support their child to attend and engage in as many online tutoring sessions as possible.

- Only pupils enrolled on the Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's programme may be involved in online tutoring sessions with Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd tutors.
- Parents/guardians or the named Responsible Adult will pass on any concerns about safeguarding immediately to the Lead Tutor in Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd or directly to the DSL through safeguarding@parityeducation.co.uk.
- Parents/guardians or the named Responsible Adult will ensure a safe, quiet and appropriate environment for online tutoring to take place at home for their child.

#### 18. Legal background

Where a person aged 18 or over is in a position of trust with a child under 18, it is an offence under the Children Act 1989 for that person to engage in sexual activity with or in the presence of that child, or to cause or incite that child to engage in or watch sexual activity.

Where a person aged 18 or over is in a position of trust with a pupil who has already reached the age of 18, any attempt to engage in sexual activity with that person will be treated as a breach of trust and will be treated as gross misconduct.

Where a person aged 18 or over is in a position of trust established with a person who has only recently left the school, any attempt to engage in sexual activity with that person will be a cause for concern and may be treated as a breach of trust established in that prior relationship and could be regarded as gross misconduct.

This means that staff and volunteer tutors must not:

- Use their position to gain access to information about pupils for their own advantage.
- Use their power to intimidate, threaten, coerce or undermine pupils.
- Use their status and standing to form or promote a relationship with a pupil of a school, which is of a sexual nature.

There are occasions when adults embark on a course of behaviour known as 'grooming' where the sole purpose is to gain the trust of the pupil and manipulate that relationship so sexual abuse can take place. This is an offence and Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd or the school will take immediate action with the relevant authorities.

Any sexual behaviour by a representative of Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd with or towards a pupil is both inappropriate and illegal. Pupils are protected by the same laws as adults in relation to non-consensual sexual behaviour. They are additionally protected by specific legal provisions regardless of whether the child or young person whether or not the adult perceives the child to have consented. This includes specific prohibitions addressed to adults in positions or trust and authority.

#### 19. Power and Positions of Trust

All adults working with pupils in education settings are in positions of trust in relation to the young people in their care. A relationship between a member of staff and a pupil cannot be a relationship between equals, therefore staff have a responsibility to ensure that an unequal balance of power is not used for personal advantage or gratification.

Although not a permanent member of staff in the schools you visit, when working on Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd's programmes in schools (or in other locations), you will be viewed by the young people you are working with as someone in a position of power and trust like their teachers and other school staff.

All staff at Parity Education and Careers Services Ltd must always maintain appropriate professionalism and wherever possible they must avoid behaviour which might be misinterpreted by others, and report and record any incident with this potential.

We therefore have a similar expectation in the standard of conduct we would expect from you and want to ensure you are fully aware of this best practice to prevent any misinterpretation of your actions. This can also include some expected behaviours outside of school that need to be upheld. In particular, criminal offenses that involve violence or possession or use of illegal drugs or sexual misconduct are likely to be regarded as unacceptable and could lead to dismissal.

#### 20. Links with other policies

- Lone worker policy
- Safer Recruitment Policy
- Data Protection Policy
- Health and Safety Policy
- Diversity and Inclusion Policy

Our safeguarding policy will be formally reviewed every year, or in line with any change in legislation and governmental guidance.

Approved / reviewed by:		
The Governing Body		
Date adopted	September 2023	
Date of next review:	September 2024 (or as appropriate)	